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27th September 2005

Home Affairs Committee

7 Millbank Place

London

SW1P 3JA

Dear Sir

CORPORATE MANSLAUGHTER – Government’s Draft Bill – March 2005 – Cm 6497

I am writing on behalf of the British Maritime Law Association (BMLA) and hope our brief comments can be of assistance.

The BMLA understands the policy objectives which underpin the Government’s proposals on Corporate Manslaughter.  Recognising the conceptual and other difficulties presented by this subject, the BMLA welcomes the Government’s revised proposals on Corporate Manslaughter with reservations.  In particular, the BMLA welcomes the fact that the Government no longer intends to pursue new criminal sanctions for individuals or to provide secondary liability.

The new Government proposals on Corporate Manslaughter (Cm 6497) represent a considerable improvement from the original Law Commission Report (LC Report No. 237, HMSO, March 1996) and the initial Governement proposals “Reforming the Law on Involuntary Manslaughter” (2000).  

In short, the revised proposals are that there should be a new offence of “corporate manslaughter” punishable by an unlimited fine where:

(i) there is a “gross” breach of duty of care is owed by a company to the victim;

(ii) this requires identified failures by “senior managers”;

(iii) their conduct falls “far below” what can reasonably be expected; and

(iv) the failures cause death on normal causation principles.

The proposed new offence is one which can only be committed by a corporation (or a Government department).  There are to be no new criminal sanctions for individuals.  Private prosecutions will require the consent of the DPP.  The offence will only apply to death in places where the English courts have jurisdiction – this will include on board British registered ships - whether or not the relevant management failures took place here or abroad.

There are, however, certain weaknesses and ambiguities in the Draft Bill which we suggest should be addressed.  In particular:

(1) The definition of “senior manager” (§2) is vague and ought for clarity to be tightened up.  The definition captures those who play “a significant role” in managing the organisation “as a whole or a substantial part of it”.  The adjective “significant” is too elastic.  
(2) The definition of “gross” breach is somewhat circular: it requires conduct falling “far below” what can reasonably be expected in the circumstances (§3).   A safety mechanism should be built in, for example, by providing that the risk of death or serious injury should be obvious.

(3) There is a potential gap in the scope of application of the proposed offence: prosecutions are allowed against “parent and other group companies” but this does not cover companies which are neither parent companies nor within the group but which provide professional management services to a company for a fee.  Such an arrangement is common in the shipping industry.

(4) The proposals are said not to affect investigations by independent accident investigation branches such as the Marine Accident Investigation Board. However, the proposed new offence of “Corporate Manslaughter” brings into sharp relief the long-standing but unresolved question which arises in cases of mass disaster of how the modern proliferation of potential criminal, civil and Government inquiries and proceedings are intended to fit together, viz.  (a) a prosecution for “Corporate Manslaughter”, (b) an investigation by the Marine Accident Investigation Branch, (c) a Public Inquiry or Wreck Commission and (d) a Coroner’s Inquest.   In the opinion of the BMLA this question urgently needs a solution.

We hope these comments are off assistance.

Yours faithfully,

Andrew Taylor

On behalf of BMLA
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